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6. The only repairs carried out on the building were to 757 Colombo Street. These repairs
consisted of raking out mortar joints and reinstating with a cement based mortar, several
existing bricks were replaced due to cracking through them.

These repairs were to the western end (rear) of 757 Colombo Street.

We are not aware if our recommendations to remove the chimneys to 753 and 755 Colombo
Street were carried out.

vi.

vil.

When carrying out the inspection and in coming to the conclusion that the buildings
were safe to occupy consideration was given to the impact of the 4" September 2010
earthquake and subsequent aftershocks on the structural integrity of the building.
Following the visual inspection, and apart from the minor damage to the rear of 757
Colombo Street, we had no reason to believe that structurally the building was not in a
similar condition to what it was on 3" September 2010.

Therefore, we did not have reason to believe that the buildings capacity to withstand
future aftershocks (which at that time were believed to be confined to the Greendale
fault) was diminished.

This general assumption across the industry was significantly changed by the Boxing
Day aftershock and the realisation that we were dealing with multiple faults, and also
given the different orientation of strong shaking to the September 4" event.

We were not asked to reinspect the building after the Boxing Day event, and assume
this was carried out by another party.

To our knowledge, GNS or any other source did not make available any information
about the likelihood, location and extent of further aftershocks in September and
October 2010. This information became more widely available following the 22"
February 2011 earthquake.

To our knowledge the Christchurch City Council did not make available any information
relating to building standards or the inspection of buildings immediately following the
earthquake.

We did not review any information from any other external party relating to building
standards or the inspection of buildings following an earthquake as part of this
inspection.

The building plans were not reviewed as part of our inspection.

No structural damage was evident within the building. It was considered that the
building would still fall under the council’'s damaged building policy and timeframes with
regards to strengthening, refer attached flow chart provided by CCC (attachment C).

The opportunity to trigger these potential strengthening timeframes would have been
provided when the necessary consenting of repair works was discussed between CCC
and contractor. (Refer our letter dated 8 October 2010, attachment A).

As noted previously strengthening works may have been carried out on 759 Colombo
due to the presence of new steel work, however it was not clear at the time to what
extent. There was no evidence within the remainder of the building that strengthening
works had been carried out. Therefore it was considered that strengthening works had
not been carried out on the remainder of the building.
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Canterbury Earthquakes Royal Commission
Te Komihana Rawhenua a te Karauna

21 November 2011

Lewis Bradford Consulting Engineers
Unit 6, 75 Peterborough Street
CHRISTCHURCH

Attention: Hamish Mackinven

753-759 Colombo Street

The Royal Commission of Inquiry into building failure caused by the Canterbury
earthquakes is currently examining the failure of a number of buildings in the
Christchurch CBD, including the building that was situated at 753-759 Colombo St
(the building).

| understand from the property manager for the owners of the building that Mr
Mackinven conducted a number of inspections of the building, including:

Brief walk through inspection, resulting in an email report by you on 9
September 2010 to Andy Bell of Simes. . -

Report of 8 October 2010 covering structural inspection and repair of 757
Colombo St

Site reports for 757 Colombo St dated 18 and 21 October 2010.

The hearing for this building is set down for Monday 30 January 2012 at 2.15pm. It
will be necessary for you to give brief evidence in relation to your assessments of the
building.

For that purpose | enclose a summons and accompanying letter. If you have any
queries please do not hesitate to contact the writer (phone: 7413014, email:
mark.zarifeh@rovalcommission.qovt.nz

In the meantime would you please provide the following information, by 2 December

2011:
1 Your full name, qualifications and years of experience.
2 An outline of how you became involved with the building and in particular
what you were asked to do.
3. Details of any other advice given or conclusions reached in relation to the

building (other than contained in the documents referred to above) and
copies of the same if relevant.

15 Barry Hogan Place, Addington, Christchurch
PO Box 14053, Christchurch Mail Centre 8544
Freephone 0800 337 468 www.royalcommission.govt.nz
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A pedestrian was killed when the fagade and veranda at 753 Colombo St
collapsed. In relation to that portion of the building, it would appear that
there was not any structural damage observed after the September
earthquake. Was that correct?

The documentation | have seen is unclear as to exactly what structural
strengthening had been carried out in the past. There seems to be a
suggestion that there may have been structural strengthening of 753 in
the past. Are you aware of this and if so could you please provide
details?

It appears from your report of 8 October 2010 that the only structural
repairs carried out on the building were to 757 Colombo St (other than
removal of a chimney to 753 Colombo St). Could you please confirm this.

When carrying out any of the inspections you did in relation to the building
did you take into consideration any of the following:

The impact of the 4 September 2010 earthquake and any
subsequent aftershocks on the structural integrity of the Building
and, in particular, whether the Building’s capacity to withstand future
aftershocks was diminished as a result?

Any information from GNS or any other source about the likelihood,
location and extent of further aftershocks? If so, please provide
details of this information.

Information from the Christchurch City Council relating to building
standards or the inspection of buildings following an earthquake? If
so, please provide details of this information.

iv Any information from any other party relating to building standards
or the inspection of buildings following an earthquake? If so, please
provide details of this information.

v The Building plans.

Vi The Christchurch City Council's earthquake prone policy and

whether the Building complied with that.

vii.  Whether any previous structural strengthening had been carried out.

The above information is requested pursuant to the Royal Commission’s powers of
investigation under s 4C Commissions of Inquiry Act 1908.

Thank you for your assistance.

Yours faithfully

M
Coun

Assisting

Canterbury Earthquakes Royal Commission
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